
Meeting of:  Heywood Township Committee
Date: Tuesday, 19th November, 2019
Time: 6.15 pm.
Venue: Phoenix Centre - L/Cpl Stephen Shaw MC Way,  

Heywood, OL10 1LR

This agenda gives notice of items to be considered in private as required by
Regulations 5 (4) and (5) of The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements)
(Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012.

Item 
No.

AGENDA Page No

1  Civic Prayers 

2  Apologies 

To receive any apologies for absence.

3  Declarations of Interest 

Members are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary, personal 
or personal and prejudicial interests they may have and the nature of 
those interests relating to items on this agenda and/or indicate if S106 
of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them.   

4  Urgent Items of Business 

To determine whether there are any additional items of business 
which, by reason of special circumstances, the Chair decides should 
be considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency.

5  Items for Exclusion of Public and Press 

To determine any items on the agenda, if any, where the public are to 
be excluded from the meeting.

6  Open Forum 

Half an hour has been set aside for members of the public to raise any issues 
relevant to the business of the Committee and the Township.

Public Document Pack



7  Minutes 4 - 6

To consider the minutes of the meeting of the Heywood Township Committee 
held on 9th September 2019.

8  Blurred Lines - Video 

A film about criminal exploitation and sexual exploitation of children by 
young people of Oulder Hill school.

9  Objections to Traffic Order - Rochdale Road East, Heywood 7 - 25

For Members to receive a report on Rochdale Road East traffic Order.

10  Section 106 - Queen's Park BMX Track 26 - 28

Township will receive a report on Section 106 Queens Park BMX 
Track.

11  Section 106 Formal Sport and Local Open Space 29 - 44

A report detailing progress being made in updating procedures to 
allocate Section 106 Formal Sport and Local Open Space 
contributions across the Township.

Heywood Township Committee Members
Councillor Jacqueline Beswick Councillor Ray Dutton
Councillor Susan Emmott Councillor Peter Malcolm
Councillor Alan McCarthy Councillor Liam O'Rourke
Councillor Linda Robinson Councillor Peter Rush
Councillor Carol Wardle

For more information about this meeting, please contact 

01706 924816
john.addison@rochdale.gov.uk



HEYWOOD TOWNSHIP COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF MEETING
Monday, 9 September 2019

PRESENT: Councillors Rush (Chair) Beswick, Malcolm, McCarthy and 
O'Rourke 

OFFICERS: Andrew Storey (Highways Directorate) Stuart Hay and John
Addison (Resources Directorate).

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE: 40 Members of the Public

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE: Councillor Dutton, Councillor Wardle, 
Councillor Susan Emmott and Councillor Robinson

10 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest.

11 URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS

There were no urgent items of business.

12 ITEMS FOR EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS

There were no items of business under this item.

13 OPEN FORUM

There were no questions from Members of the Public.

14 MINUTES

RESOLVED

That the Minutes of the meeting of the Township Committee held on 10th
June 2019 be agreed as a correct record.

15 OBJECTIONS TO TRAFFIC ORDER - ROCHDALE ROAD EAST, 
HEYWOOD

The Committee considered a report of the Director of Neighbourhoods 
advising of objections received to a proposed Traffic Regulation Order - On 
proposed extensions of existing No Waiting at Any Time restrictions on the 
north side of Rochdale Road East (A58) and to introduce waiting restrictions 
on the south side of Rochdale Road East at its junction with Harefield Drive. It 
was noted that the order had been advertised and four objections were 
received.

Public Document Pack

Page 3

Agenda Item 7



In considering the report, the Committee received representations from an 
objector to the proposed traffic order and the implications it would have. The 
Head of Highways reminded that Township that the Council had a statutory 
duty to ensure that its highways operated safely and efficiently, for all traffic 
including pedestrians.

Members discussed the proposed order and shared residents’ concerns that 
this order would only compound parking issues in the area and create issues 
elsewhere. Members noted however the health and safety implications 
involved.

RESOLVED

That until options come forward that can satisfy both residents parking and 
safety concerns, the decision be suspended and revisited.

16 OBJECTIONS TO TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDER - ROCHDALE LANE 
AND BRIERLEY STREET, HEYWOOD

The Committee considered a report of the Director of Neighbourhoods 
advising of objections received to a proposed Traffic Regulation Order – 
based on a request from Heywood Township for the Council to investigate the 
introduction of parking restrictions on Rochdale Lane and Brierley Street in 
Heywood. It was reported that indiscriminate parking occurred in this location 
which impacted primarily on goods vehicle movements.

 It was noted that a scheme was advertised and during the consultation period 
the Council received 82 letters of objection to the proposal plus a petition 
signed by 548 people.

In considering the report, the Committee received representations from an 
objector to the proposed traffic order and the implications it would have. The 
resident submitted an alternative to the proposed order that was shared with 
the Township and Officers.

 Members discussed the proposed order and requested that Highways consult 
with the resident about the alternative proposal and a report on this be 
brought to a future meeting.

RESOLVED

That Highways consult with objectors about the alternative proposal and a 
report on this be brought to a future meeting.

17 SPEEDING ON BURY OLD ROAD HEYWOOD

A Member of the public raised a concern about speeding on Bury Old Road, 
which was excessive and drivers driving in an unsafe manor.

Page 4



The Committee shared the residents concern and endorsed the request for a 
measures to deter speeding. A Police representative to the Township, stated 
that the Police did take action when possible and more targeted days of action 
could be undertaken.

The Committee further asked what powers/options did it have at its disposal 
for Bury Old Road and requested the Council’s Highways department report 
back to a future meeting of the Township with a range of options.

RESOLVED

1) That the township endorse a number of days of targeted action by the 
Police on Bury Old Road, including the use of mobile speed cameras.

2) That for the Townships next meeting a range of physical options and 
costs be present to Members on appropriate measures to tackle 
speeding on Bury Old Road.

18 TOILET PROVISION IN HEYWOOD TOWN CENTRE

It was agreed that this item be withdrawn.

RESOLVED

That the item be withdrawn.

19 OLDER PERSONS CHAMPION REPORT

Members received copies of a report from the Townships Older Persons 
Champion, on the work she had been undertaking whilst in the role.

RESOLVED

That the Older Persons Champion be thanked for her report.

Page 5



Report to Heywood Township Committee

Date of Meeting 19th November 2019
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Environment
Report Author David Godley
Public/Private Document Public.

Objections to Traffic Order - Rochdale Road East, Heywood

Executive Summary

1.1

1.2

A report about objections to a recently advertised TRO affecting Rochdale 
Road East was considered by Heywood Township Committee on 9th 
September 2019.

The Committee decided that the matter should be revisited.

Recommendation

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

The Committee should consider whether the proposed Traffic Regulation
Order, Borough of Rochdale ((Civil Enforcement of Traffic contraventions)
(Various Streets) (Heywood Township) Order 2008) (Amendment) (No.57)
Order be

-  implemented as advertised, or
-  referred for Cabinet to determine should the Committee not feel

able to support the proposal in their entirety.

The proposed waiting restriction is to be introduced on Rochdale Road east 
(A58) which forms part of the Borough’s Strategic Road network.

It should be noted that in considering the report, the proposed Order relates 
to a highway of strategic importance and will be processed in accordance 
with The Council’s Constitution Part 3 Section 8.2.2. in that the, Committee 
has delegated power to confirm the proposals and the Order. However, if the 
Committee wish not to confirm the proposals and the Order, the matter must 
be referred to Cabinet for decision.

It is the recommendation of Highways Officers that the Order should be
introduced as advertised to address parking issues affecting Rochdale Road 
East traffic and the junction of Harefield Drive.

Page 6

Agenda Item 9



Reason for Recommendation

3.1 A decision is sought in order to progress and implement this scheme.

Key Points for Consideration

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

4.11

The Committee Members discussed the proposed order and shared 
residents’ concerns that this order would only compound parking issues in 
the area and create issues elsewhere.  Members noted however the health 
and safety implications involved.

Rochdale Road East (A58) forms part of the National Primary Route 
Network and is therefore a route of national significance, Carrying 
approximately 17,000 vehicles on average each day. The performance of 
the A58 corridor through Heywood is also monitored by Transport for 
Greater Manchester.

The Council in its role as Highway Authority, has a duty of care to ensure 
the safety of the travelling public and a duty under the Traffic Management 
Act 2004 to maintain the safe and expeditious movement of all forms of 
traffic including pedestrians.

In September 2019 the Committee resolved that until options come forward 
that can satisfy both residents parking and safety concerns, the decision be 
suspended and revisited.  Highways have investigated this request and are 
unable to offer any recommendations which would address the safety 
concerns issues identified and also address the issue of residents parking. It 
is Highways opinion that the safety or highway users takes precedent over 
residents being able to park.

A plan illustrating the advertised proposals is contained in Appendix 1 at the 
end of this report.

The detailed Statement of Reasons for the scheme is to be found in 
Appendix 2 of this report

Appendix 3 contains the Notice of Intention that was publicly advertised to 
invite objections.

Appendix 4 of this report contains the Key Points for Consideration taken 
from the report to Heywood Township Committee on 09 September 2019.

Appendix 5 contains the Objections received to the proposals.

Appendix 6 contains the Response to Objections received taken from the 
report to Heywood Township Committee on 09 September 2019.

Rochdale Road East (A58) – North Side

Page 7



4.12

4.13

4.14

4.15

4.16

4.17

4.18

This location continues to experience vehicles parking indiscriminately, 
impeding available road width for motorists and causing an obstruction and 
danger to both pedestrians and to the School Crossing Patrol.

The road width at this location is insufficient to enable vehicles to park on 
both the Northerly and Southerly side safely whilst still maintaining sufficient 
road width for two-way traffic.  This in turn hinders the Network from 
operating to its full ability.

For many years the status quo for parking in this area was for vehicles to 
park only on the south side of the road, wholly on the carriageway. Since 
vehicles have been parking on the northerly side of Rochdale Road East 
(often obstructing the footway),  motorist who park on the southerly side 
have been parking partially on the footway to avoid damage to their vehicles 
and so not to hinder the flow of traffic. As a consequence, at times both 
footways are being obstructed.
  

Rochdale Road East (A58) – South Side
Restrictions proposed on Rochdale Road East, at its junction with Harefield 
Drive, are intended to improve intervisibility between motorists and provide 
clearer visibility of and for drivers exiting onto Rochdale Road East by 
removing sightline obstructions.

Alternatives Considered
It is the opinion of highways officers, both of the restrictions proposed for the 
North and South side of Rochdale Road East are justified to the extent 
originally proposed in this TRO scheme. 

The introduction of this Order will still leave significant parking at the current 
location, on the south side of Rochdale Road East and in the surrounding 
area.

The No Waiting At Any Time restrictions proposed for both the north and 
south side of Rochdale Road East (A58) will not prohibit any of

 Stopping to load/unload 
 Allowing a passenger to board/alight 
 The disabled blue badge ‘3 hours parking concession’ 

Further comments on objections received 
The scheme proposed is intended solely to address the issues of 
indiscriminately and dangerously parked vehicles, which cause issues 
affecting both pedestrians and motorists on Rochdale Road East.

Costs and Budget Summary

5.1 The cost of the proposed Traffic Regulation Order is estimated to be £5000 
and will be met by the Heywood Township Capital fund.

Page 8



Risk and Policy Implications

The Council has a statutory duty to ensure that its highways operate safely 
and efficiently, for all traffic including pedestrians.

6.1

Consultation

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

Consultation required by the Local Authorities’ Traffic Orders, (Procedure) 
(England and Wales) Regulations 1996 has taken place.

The Emergency Services, Transport for Greater Manchester, The Freight 
Transport Association and the Road Haulage Association were consulted on 

21st February 2019.

Notices of intention were posted on site and published in the local newspaper 
on 9th May 2019 – See Appendix 3.

The objection period ran until 30th May 2019.

Background Papers Place of Inspection

None

For Further Information Contact: David Godley, 
david.godley@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 9



APPENDIX 1 – Rochdale Road East (A58) 

Scheme plan as advertised

Page 10



APPENDIX 2 – Statement Of Reasons

Borough of Rochdale
((Civil Enforcement of Traffic Contraventions) (Various Streets) 
(Heywood Township) Order 2008) (Amendment) 
(No.57) Order

Rochdale Road East, Heywood

Statement of Reasons

Rochdale Road East (A58)
The road is part of the strategic highway network and is situated to the 
east of Heywood Town Centre in North Heywood Ward.

Rochdale Road East (A58) – North Side

There are currently existing No Waiting At Any Time restrictions in place 
along Rochdale Road East to protect its junctions, with Gorton Street, 
Orchard Street and Barley Hall Street.

Indiscriminate and dangerous parking to the north side of this road 
causes difficulty for motorists by restricting available road width.  The 
present restrictions also only extend for 15 metres from its junction with 
Orchard Street, beyond which vehicles are often parked on the footpath 
and road, hindering traffic flow and causing an obstruction and danger to 
pedestrians and to the School Crossing Patrol operating in this area.

It is therefore the intention to extend No Waiting At Any Time restrictions 
from Gorton Street to its junction with an un-named access, situated 
some 104 metres northeast of the junction with Barley Hall Street.

Rochdale Road East (A58) – South Side

Indiscriminate parking to the south side of this road, at its junction with 
Harefield Drive, causes reduced side visibility for motorists when exiting 
Harefield Drive onto Rochdale Road East.  There are currently no 
restrictions in place at this location.

It is the intention to introduce No Waiting At Any Time restrictions on 
Rochdale Road East, at its junction with Harefield Drive, to keep the 
junction clear of parked vehicles.  This will in turn allow for clearer 
sightlines and safer movement for vehicles exiting from Harefield Drive 
onto Rochdale Road East.

Page 11



There has been one recorded injury accident in the last three years at 
this location.  This accident occurred in 2017 on Rochdale Road East at 
its junction with Chadwick Lane and was the result of a vehicle exiting 
Chadwick Lane and colliding with a vehicle travelling along Rochdale 
Road East. 

The No Waiting At Any Time restrictions proposed for Rochdale Road 
East (A58) will not prohibit any of

 Stopping to load/unload
 Allowing a passenger to board/alight
 The disabled blue badge ‘3 hours parking concession’

Rochdale Road East (A58) Proposals – North Side:
Extend the No Waiting At Any Time restrictions from Gorton Street to its 
junction with an un-named access, situated some 104 metres northeast 
of the junction with Barley Hall Street.

Rochdale Road East (A58) Proposals – South Side:
Introduce No Waiting At Any Time restrictions from a point 10 metres 
west of its junction with Harefield Drive to a point 10 metres east of its 
junction with Harefield drive.

Existing TRO’s affected by Proposals:
Existing Traffic Regulation Orders are affected by these proposals where 
the new proposals will be combined with exiting schedule entries.

Alternatives considered:
The measures proposed are the minimum believed necessary to 
alleviate some identified parking problems on Rochdale Road East.

Scaling down the proposals or not implementing them in the opinion of 
highways officers will not address the road safety issues raised.

Consultation undertaken:
The proposed TRO will be advertised with Legal Notices placed in the 
media and displayed on the streets in accordance with statutory 
requirements.

Page 12



TRO Ref No H60/1292 APPENDIX 3 – Notice of Intention

BOROUGH OF ROCHDALE
((CIVIL ENFORCEMENT OF TRAFFIC CONTRAVENTIONS)

(VARIOUS STREETS) (HEYWOOD TOWNSHIP) ORDER 2008)
(AMENDMENT) (NO.57) ORDER

ROCHDALE ROAD EAST, HEYWOOD

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Rochdale Borough Council, in exercise of its powers 
under Sections 1(1), 2 and 4 of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984, intend to make an 
Order, the effect of which would be to:-

(1) Amend the Borough of Rochdale (Civil Enforcement of Traffic Contraventions) 
(Various Streets) (Heywood Township) Order 2008 by inserting the following:-

Schedule No. 1.1
No Waiting at Any Time

Rochdale Road East, North Heywood Ward

n(i) the north side from its junction with Gorton Street to a point 104 metres 
northeast of its junction with Barley Hall Street

n(ii) the south side from a point 10 metres west of its junction with Harefield Drive to 
a point 10 metres east of its junction with Harefield Drive

(2) Revoke those parts of the Borough of Rochdale (Civil Enforcement of Traffic 
Contraventions) (Various Streets) (Heywood Township) Order 2008, as follows:-

Schedule No. 1.1
No Waiting at Any Time

Rochdale Road East, North Heywood Ward
(ii) the north side from its junction with Gorton Street to a point 79 metres east of its 

junction with Gorton Street

(iii) the north side from its junction with Orchard Street to a point 15 metres west of 
its junction with Orchard Street

(iv) the north side from its junction with Orchard Street to a point 15 metres east of 
its junction with Orchard Street

(vi) the north side from its junction with Barley Hall Street for a distance of 15 metres 
in a westerly direction

(vii) the northern side from its junction with Barley Hall Street for a distance of 15 
metres in an easterly direction

A copy of the proposed Order and maps showing the lengths of roads concerned, together 
with the Council’s Statement of Reasons for making the Order, may be inspected at the 
Customer Services Centre, Heywood Library, L/Cpl Stephen Shaw M.C. Way, Heywood, 
OL10 1LL during normal office hours, or viewed on the Council’s website 
www.rochdale.gov.uk/roads, or by phoning Highways on 0300 303 8879.

Page 13

http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/roads


Objections to the proposed Order, stating the grounds on which they are made, must be 
made in writing and forwarded to trafficorders@rochdale.gov.uk or, alternatively, to 
Network Management, Floor 2, Number One Riverside, Smith Street, Rochdale, OL16 1XU 
to reach the Council on or before 30th May 2019, quoting H60/1292.

Dated this 9th day of May 2019

David Wilcock
Assistant Director (Legal, Governance & Workforce).

Corporate Services,
Rochdale Borough Council

Number One Riverside
Smith Street
ROCHDALE
OL16 1XU

Page 14

mailto:trafficorders@rochdale.gov.uk


APPENDIX 4 – Key Points for Consideration

Rochdale Road East (A58) forms part of the National Primary Route Network and is 
therefore a route of national significance and carries approximately 17,000 vehicles, 
on average each day.

These proposals received four objections, which are from persons whose parking 
preferences are affected by the proposals.

The Council in its role as Highway Authority, has a duty of care to ensure the safety 
of the travelling public and a duty under the Traffic Management Act 2004 to 
maintain the expeditious movement of traffic.

The plan in Appendix 1, shows the proposed increases in restrictions to the north 
side and the new proposed restrictions to the south side of Rochdale Road East. 

The increase of the restrictions to the north side is felt necessary to keep Rochdale 
Road East clear of indiscriminately parked vehicles and allow the Network to operate 
more efficiently.

It is clear from observations that motorists parking on the northerly side of Rochdale 
Road East are conscious that they are hindering the flow of traffic, as they mount the 
footway to park their vehicle often obstructing the footway for pedestrians, some of 
whom will be Children and parents heading to the nearby All Souls C of E Primary 
School.

A School Crossing Patrol operates at this location and concerns have been raised 
regarding parked vehicles hindering the safe operation of the crossing patrol. 

All four objectors make reference to their perceived loss of customary parking close 
to or directly outside their home or business.

In considering the objections the Committee should be mindful that the only right the 
general public has on the highway is a right of passage along it.

The objection regarding the proposals along the South side of Rochdale Road East 
does not acknowledge that there are junction visibility or safety issues present at this 
location for either drivers or pedestrians.

By removing some parked vehicles from the junction with Harefield Drive it will give 
clearer visibility of and for drivers exiting onto Rochdale Road East in a safer 
manner.

Two of the four objections highlight the need to load/unload at a business situated on 
the north side of Rochdale Road East and concerns regarding the ability to continue 
to do if the proposals are implemented.

The No Waiting At Any Time restrictions proposed for both the north and south side 
of Rochdale Road East (A58) will not prohibit any of

Page 15



 Stopping to load/unload 

 Allowing a passenger to board/alight 

 The disabled blue badge ‘3 hours parking concession’

Page 16



APPENDIX 5 – Objections Received

Objector 1                 . 
   . Rochdale Road East, Heywood. OL10     .

Details of objection

Objector’s comments written as received

Subject: In regards to Ref No H60/1292
 

Dear Sir/Madam, 

I am writing in concern of     . Rochdale Road East, Heywood, Lancs, OL10     . and the 
shop I run there named Wallers bathroom supplies 

I came to find out about the proposed addition of double yellow lines out side my shop 
by a recent customer who lives around the corner who saw the notice down the street 
attached to a post out of view ,as he passed with his dog and stated to me (it will effect 
my business) so I went to have a look and saw the notice so I called the number straight 
away to find out what was going on as I had not been informed about something that 
would massively effect my business . I had waited 2 weeks for a return phone call of 
somebody to find out what was going on and if some sort of permit / notice to put in 
vehicles windows could be looked into,

as I only need 25-30 mins loading to be allowed . The phone call never got returned 
even tho the office said it would take 2-3 days to get back to me by email or phone. 

It was only on the 28th may 2019 I rang up to chase up what was going on and I was 
finally passed to somebody in a different department who stated they had no information 
of me ringing up and they hadn’t been passed the information on from the office which 
is very poor service and where have my details been passed to with data protection ?

Only on this phone call I was told that I had to email in or write in and nobody could 
help over the phone with my issue , by this time there was only 2 days left so no time to 
get my solicitor to do a professional letter (the reason why this email is very rushed) 
being told the notice was on street furniture and in local paper which I do not read and I 
don’t walk any we’re near the post it is on and not my duty to check posts weekly for 
notices which could close my business. Very poor service towards a small busines which 
is going to be effected , no decency of speaking to me regards what was being issued 
and why.

I open by appointment for customers I do not open 9-5, so the parking is not an issue all 
the time, it would only be needed when customers are filling there cars or vans with 
heavy items from the shop Which is not a 5 minute job this does not include light ones 
as they can be carried . Or when I get a large delivery of 30+ items which are placed 
around the shop upon delivery due to being large items and a 2 person job and only me 
being there as the only staff and help off the delivery drivers . some items into the 
basement and again isn’t a 5 min job to simply unload due to easily getting damaged. It 
is impossible to continually load as the items are in different places and there’s not 
enough room in the shop to get the full van emptied . Items as ready as possible before 

Page 17



loading and unloading but due to being 2 person job most of them this is a 25-30min job 
normally . It is not safe from Health and safety side to carry items down the street or 
across the road. Where there is very often no parking . as all taken by people who live 
there and impossible to cross with the heavy items when traffic flys down the road at 
speed which is already very dangerous . Even when my customers are parked outside 
loading there is still more than enough room for 2 vehicles to pass easily . no crashes 
have happened when parked cars only when the road is clear and people speed, so this is 
not solving a problem it is creating a bigger problem . And could easily cause a death if 
clearing the road all the way down. 

In the 2 years I have been in the shop the police have had footage of 14 crashes / 
accidents on that road due to people speeding down when the road is clear , vehicles 
being damaged / written off , My cameras on the shop always see this speeding every 
day and people’s cars on the street who live there get damaged and very dangerous as 
there’s a school down the next street, so to opening the road clear so people can speed 
down is more dangerous accidents waiting to happen and very silly for the council to do 
, as much as the cars maybe a nuisance every few days or so stopping for a short period 
of time ,the slowing down of traffic is a positive effect and also when my van was 
parked across the road earlier this year where the parking is allowed and still is going to 
be allowed it got crashed into when the road was quite due to a vehicle speeding. People 
living on the side where parking is being allowed ,park on the opposite side due to 
Insufficient parking spaces and to slow the traffic down also . 

I ask that the double yellow lines along this short distance to be re thought as the danger 
it will cause . And closure of my shop and loss of income to my landlord who relies on it 
for his retirement , and having the occasional vehicle parked along this stretch benefits 
local residents in a way of reducing speeding. If cars are there it restricts dangerous 
driving. This can be an unsafe part of the road at the best of times.

There is a post box along this pavement and a litter bin which Both require emptying so 
will stop people being able to use these or even empty them or does it not count for the 
council ect to get a ticket ?

There is no benefits of a 'No waiting at any time' being imposed along this stretch. If 
anything, it is likely the encourage speeding, making it a much more dangerous stretch 
of road. Especially with a primary school just a couple of hundred metres down Barley 
Hall street. - There is a lollipop lady but only there at key school times who already 
struggles due to people speeding down the road !

A permit would help me ,to put in customers cars for the time they are stopped or a 
small 1 space zone out side the shop where people could stop for less than 30 mins to 
load ? 

Even when a vehicle is parked slightly on the kerb a pram  or automated wheel chair can 
still easily pass which I always make sure of. Also when a vehicle is loading ,2 vehicles 
on the road can easily pass . Also telling a parking warden that the vehicle is loading 
doesn’t happen, as they do not listen and are not fair especially when getting the next 
item to load into the vehicle from the shop where they are stored . Items are as ready as 
possible but not able to be all stored at door for fire safety and not able to pile all on kerb 
either .

Page 18



Thank you for reading my email and look forward to the reply 

Yours Faithfully, 
                . 

Objector 2
                . 

   . Rochdale Road East, Heywood. OL10     .

Details of objection
Objector’s comments written as received

Subject:, TRO Ref No H60/1292

Dear Sir/Madam, 

I write on behalf or my father, Mr    ., the owner of    .  Rochdale Road East, Heywood, 
Lancs, OL10    .  and his loyal tenant, of the same address, Mr    ..

   .  has run 'Waller's Bathroom Supplies',  a growing and successful business, from these 
premise for a number of years now and relies on the ability to park outside of the 
property to load and unload bathroom furniture. He also has customers viewing by 
appointment who need to be able to load their vehicles outside of the shop as many of 
the items sold are bulky and/or heavy.

Putting double yellow lines along the stretch of road between Orchard Street and 
(running East) Barley Hall Street is likely to severely affect    .  business and, in turn, my 
fathers rental income. 

We ask that the double yellow lines along this short distance be reconsidered. 

We strongly believe that having the occasional vehicle parked along this stretch benefits 
local residents in a way of reducing speeding. If cars are there it restricts dangerous 
driving. This can be an unsafe part of the road at the best of times.

There is also the matter of other local amenities such as the post box along this 
pavement and the litter bin used. Both of these require emptying and maintenance. 

We can not see a benefit of a 'No waiting at any time' being imposed along this stretch. 
If anything, it is likely the encourage speeding, making it a much more dangerous stretch 
of road. Especially with a primary school just a couple of hundred metres down Barley 
Hall street. - There is a lollipop attendee but only there at key school times and not for 
before and after school clubs.

Thank you for taking the time to read this email, we look forward to hearing back from 
you in due course. 

Yours Faithfully,

   .
   .
   .

Page 19



Objector 3
                . 

   . Rochdale Road East, Heywood. OL10     ..

Details of objection
Objector’s comments written as received

Subject: Disagree TRO Ref No H60/1292

Dear officers:

My name is    ., I have lived in    . Rochdale road east, heywood OL10    . with my two young 
daughters over four years. I have read notice Ref No H60/1292 from Rochdale Council which 
mean we cannot park outside of our door. We are so sad to hear this and disagree it. 

We don't have any car park base  in my garden. I had tried to park my car at opposite the road 
but I had received a hand writing paper from my opposite neighbour. They said that is outside of 
their house so there are belong to them. Also I had tried to park  next street which name is 
Barley Hall ST but the owner of shop said there is his loading area.

I have two young children who need go to different schools on every morning. If I park  my car 
too far, I worried they will go to school late also the roads are very busy on the morning which 
isn't safety for my children.

We appeal  to  stop Ref No H60/1292, We need a little area for our car.

Yours sincerely 
   .   .

                                   
            

Page 20



Objector 4
                . 

   . Rochdale Road East, Heywood. OL10     ..

Details of objection
Objector’s comments written as received

REF: TRO H60/1292

BOROUGH OF ROCHDALE 
(CIVIL ENFORCEMENT OF TRAFFIC CONTRAVENTIONS)

HEYWOOD TOWNSHIP) ORDER 2008
AMENDMENT (NO.57) ORDER

ROCHDALE ROAD EAST HEYWOOD

Dear Counsellors,

We are writing to object to the proposal schedule 1.1 – no waiting time, Rochdale Road 
East n(ii) the south side from a point 10 metres west of its junction with Harefield Drive 
to a point 10 metres east of its junction with Harefield Drive.

We reside at number    .  Rochdale Road East in a row of houses starting from the 
bottom of Chadwick Lane to Harefield Drive.  In the row are 8 houses, then 2 semi-
detached houses and the lodge at the bottom of Harefield Drive.  Three of the row of 
houses have double yellow lines at the front of the property (bottom of Chadwick Lane).  
We are objecting to the proposal on account that if this is passed there is absolutely 
nowhere to park.

If you take a walk around the area at night you will witness that parking along Rochdale 
Road East is at a premium.  Residents on the road are unable to park on Barley Hall 
Street and Chadwick Lane (this has been compounded by the erection of the alley 
gates on Chadwick Land as the residents now park on the road rather than park in their 
garage’s/ parking space at the back of the houses).  

The residents in these houses affected on Rochdale Road East are considerate to each 
other when parking, but visitors of the residential home and now the church often park 
where ever there is a space available.

We understand the Harefield Drive residents requesting double yellow lines but your 
policy will squeeze our ability to park on the main road therefore causing potential 
conflict with residents on Chadwick Lane and Barley Hall Street.

The planning officers have cited a number of reasons why the proposal should be 
approved - Indiscriminate parking to the south side of the road at its junction with 
Harefield Drive.  I dispute this as residents of Rochdale Road East endeavour to park 
safely.  If there has been the occasion that someone has parked on the junction of 
Harefield Drive then these are visitors to the area.  When this occurs then surely this is 
a Police issue not a traffic enforcement issue.

We have been advised by an officer of the Council that they have to enforce Rule 243 
of the Highway Code which states no parking opposite or within 10 metres (32 feet) of a 
junction, except in an authorised parking space.  This is advisory only and I go back to 
the point that if there is inappropriate parking then this should be a Police matter.

Page 21



Further reasons given is that there has been one recorded injury accident in the last 
three years at this location stating that the accident occurred in 2017 on Rochdale Road 
East at its junction with Chadwick Lane and was the result of a vehicle exiting Chadwick 
Lane and colliding with a vehicle travelling along Rochdale Road East.  I just need too 
point out that the double yellow lines were already in place at the bottom of Chadwick 
Lane when this accident happened.  

Rather than making the road more dangerous for the residents of Rochdale Road East 
there are other measures that you can consider.  We have asked for a speed camera in 
the areas but this has been rejected. You could also look at other traffic calming 
measures rather than continually penalising the residents of Rochdale Road East. Or if 
someone is parked and causing an obstruction then the Police should ask for that 
vehicle to be fined or removed.

We would welcome the opportunity to discuss this issue with the decision makers 
therefore please could you advise me of when this will be considered under council 
business.  

Yours faithfully 

             .          .           .    

Page 22



Page 23



APPENDIX 6 – Response to Objections

There are competing demands for on-street parking spaces in this area given its 
location adjacent to residential properties and businesses.  The Council appreciate 
that the availability of parking in areas such as this is important and will always try to 
maintain parking where possible. However, concerns have been raised regarding the 
areas of highway that the objectors wish to remain un-restricted in relation to parked 
vehicles hindering visibility of drivers, hindering the safe operation of the crossing 
patrol, reducing available road width and causing an obstruction and danger to 
pedestrians and to the School Crossing Patrol operating in this area.   

Although residents and some businesses may be affected by a proposal in terms of 
their parking arrangements, it should also be borne in mind that the only right the 
general public has on the highway is the right of passage along it. The Council is not 
responsible for creating or maintaining on-street parking places for residents or 
businesses. The Council, acting in its capacity as Highway Authority, have a duty of 
care to ensure the safety of the travelling public and to maintain the expeditious 
movement of traffic, which has to take precedence over the provision of on-street 
parking places.

The desire to park directly outside of residential properties conflicts with Rochdale 
Road East’s status as a classified road and strategic route.

Half of all objections received relate to Wallers Bathroom Supplies.  They believe 
that the proposed restrictions will severely affect the business in terms of the 
availability for the business and customers to load and unload accordingly. 

The proposed No Waiting At Any Time restrictions will not prohibit any of - Stopping 
to load/unload, Allowing a passenger to board/alight, The disabled blue badge ‘3 
hours parking concession’

At present vehicles are prevented from travelling past occasional obstructions 
caused by indiscriminately parked vehicles which mean vehicles in opposing 
directions have on occasion to give way, particularly if one or both vehicles is large 
such as a bus or goods vehicle.

Removal of parked vehicles does not in itself promote motorists travelling at 
excessive speed, but does remove the slow down, give way, accelerate past 
obstructions in favour of the opportunity to make normal unhindered progress.

In considering the scheme attention should be given to the road safety benefits of 
the restrictions around the junctions, which improve visibility for motorists negotiating 
them.

In summary, the Council believe that the restrictions are justified to support and 
protect access rights along the highway, at its junctions and to remove parked 
vehicles from the footway.

Page 24



Report to Heywood Township Committee

Date of Meeting 19th November 2019
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Planning, Development & 
Housing

Report Author Nick Barton
Public/Private Document Public

Section 106 - Queen's Park BMX Track

Executive Summary

1.1 This report seeks approval to allocate funds currently held from Section 106 
open space contributions in the Heywood North Ward to contribute to 
improvements to Queen’s Park BMX Track.

Recommendation

2.1 It is recommended that Committee Members approve the allocation of 
£12,420 of Section 106 open space contributions from development at 15 to 
21 Market Street (£830), 85 to 85a Rochdale Road East (£4,980) and Land at 
Manchester Street (£6,430) to fund improvements to Queen’s Park BMX 
Track.

Reason for Recommendation

3.1

3.2

3.3

Heywood Township Members have previously requested that Section 106 
open space funded schemes be approved by Member by way of a report to an 
appropriate committee. A similar process of reporting exists in all other 
Townships.

A costed scheme has been prepared by Roch Valley Raiders BMX Club and is 
supported by Ward Councillors.

The scheme is within the parameters of the Section 106 agreements and the 
Council’s ‘Provision for Recreational Open Space in New Housing’ 
Supplementary Planning Document.

Key Points for Consideration

4.1 Rochdale Council’s Supplementary Planning Document ‘Provision of 
Recreational Open Space in New Housing’, states that contributions may be 
used towards the provision (including 20 years maintenance) and / or 
improvement of open space within 5 years of receipt. In the case of informal 

Page 25

Agenda Item 10



4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

open space, provision should be within 20 minutes walking distance of the 
development generating the contribution.

Section 106 contributions have been received in relation £12,420 in relation to 
developments at 15 to 21 Market Street (£830), 85 to 85a Rochdale Road 
East (£4,980) and Land at Manchester Street (£6,430).

A scheme has been prepared by Roch Valley Raiders BMX Club to improve 
the existing BMX track, including the creation of tarmac berms (banked 
corners). The club is well respected within British Cycling and its coaches 
have won a number of awards. Riders from the club have progressed to 
national and international competition, including the World Championships.

The club maintains the track at its own cost and outside of club training 
sessions the track has open access for community use.

Members are asked to approve the allocation of £12,420 of Section 106 open 
space contributions to enable the implementation of this project.

Alternatives Considered

The Council is required to spend Section 106 contributions in accordance with 
legal agreements and local and national planning policy. Not bringing forward 
projects to spend Section 106 contributions in accordance with these 
agreements and policies risks the loss of investment in local facilities, and the 
refunding of monies held from Section 106 contributions where there is a time 
limited period for spend.

Proposals put forward in this report have been previously considered at 
Heywood Township Delegated Funding Sub-Committee, where Members 
were minded to support the proposals through Township funds, however 
asked that if sufficient eligible Section 106 open space contributions where 
available to support the proposals that these should be used to maximise the 
funding available to the Township.

Costs and Budget Summary

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

Section 106 contributions are monitored and managed to ensure that they are 
received and spent in accordance with policy and financial regulations.

The works have been tendered by the BMX club in accordance with Council 
procurement standards for a project of this size. The BMX club will manage 
the implementation of the works with the Council contribution being monitored 
by the Heywood Township and Engagement Officer.

Ongoing management and maintenance costs relating to the BMX track will 
continue to be met by the BMX club.

The identified funding of £12,420 is made up of Section 106 open space 
contributions relating to developments at 15 to 21 Market Street (£830), 85 to 
85a Rochdale Road East (£4,980) and Land at Manchester Street (£6,430).

Page 26



Risk and Policy Implications

As identified in the report, contributions from Section 106 agreements must be 
spent within the parameters of each of those legally binding documents. 
Where money is not spent within the appropriate parameters, then this risks 
legal challenge, which would present significant financial and reputational as 
well as legal risk to the Council.

Where there are any queries or where there is any uncertainty on spending 
contributions obtained through Section 106 planning obligations, this should 
be raised and advice should be sought from Legal Services and where 
appropriate the Section 151 Officer, as any misspending may obviously 
impact on that function.

6.1

6.2

Consultation

7.1 The proposals have previously considered and supported by Members at the 
Heywood Township Delegated Funding Sub-Committee.

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8.1 ‘Provision of Recreational Open 
Space in New Housing’ 
Supplementary Planning 
Document

Planning and Development, Floor 3, 
Number One Riverside or online at: 
http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/pdf/2017-02-
21-recreational-open-space-spd-
updated-v2.pdf

For Further Information Contact: Nick Barton, Tel: 01706924847, 
nick.barton@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 27

http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/pdf/2017-02-21-recreational-open-space-spd-updated-v2.pdf
http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/pdf/2017-02-21-recreational-open-space-spd-updated-v2.pdf
http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/pdf/2017-02-21-recreational-open-space-spd-updated-v2.pdf


Report to Middleton Township Committee

Date of Meeting 14th November 2019
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Housing, Planning and 
Development

Report Author Nick Barton
Public/Private Document Public

Section 106 Formal Sport and Local Open Space

Executive Summary

1.1

1.2

This report updates Elected Members on the progress made in updating 
procedures to allocate Section 106 Formal Sport and Local Open Space 
contributions following an audit report, which was produced in October 2018.

This report provides information on the current balance of unallocated Section 
106 Formal Sport and Local Open Space contributions, on a Ward, Township 
and borough wide basis.

Recommendation

2.1

2.2

Elected Members note the procedures in place to allocate Section 106 Formal 
Sport and Open Space contributions, both in relation to historic agreements, 
signed prior to April 2015 and agreements following the change in Community 
Infrastructure Levy (CIL) legislation in April 2015.

Elected Members note the unallocated Section 106 Formal Sport and Local 
Open Space contributions and the restrictions upon them, for their Ward and 
Township.

Reason for Recommendation

3.1

3.2

Section 106 Planning Obligations regarding Formal Sport and Local Open 
Space attract significant resources to improve local sports and general 
recreation facilities for the benefit of the residents of our communities. The 
Council is obliged to ensure that these resources are spent efficiently and in 
accordance with local policy and Government guidance.

Following an audit of the Section 106 process in October 2018, additional 
procedures have been developed to ensure the efficient allocation and spend 
of historic and new Section 106 contributions in accordance with local policy 
and Government guidance.

Page 28

Agenda Item 11



Key Points for Consideration

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

In October 2018, the Council’s Internal Audit team produced a report on 
Section 106 Planning Obligations. The key objective of the audit was to 
ensure that Section 106 arrangements are managed appropriately.

The audit provided an assurance opinion that Section 106 arrangements 
where adequately managed, stating that “the control systems in operation are 
generally sound. However, opportunities exist to improve the management of 
some risks”.

The audit report made two recommendations, firstly establishing a Section 106 
Officer Steering Group and secondly to review existing unallocated section 
106 contributions.

A breakdown of all unallocated Formal Sport and Local Open Space by Ward 
and Township is attached to this report (Appendix 1). The council currently 
holds £551,078 in unallocated Formal Sport contributions and £798,027 of 
Local Open Space contributions.

In accordance with the recommendations of the audit report, an officer 
steering group has been created and is chaired by the Assistant Director for 
Place (Neighbourhoods).

This group has reviewed processes for the delivery of Section 106 
contributions which fall in to two categories:

 Those relating to pre April 2015 agreements, where Elected Member 
approval (Cabinet for Formal Sport and the relevant Township for Local 
Open Space) for the allocation of existing contributions is required; and

 Those relating to post April 2015 agreements, where Elected Member 
approval for new allocations is required as part of the planning process.

Members should note that Section 106 allocations for formal sport should be 
prioritised to support the priorities in the Council’s Play Pitch Strategy, this 
strategy takes a hierarchical approach, prioritising Township hub sites, 
followed by key education sites, followed by single sport representation and 
larger multi-pitch sites and finally small club sites.

Members should also note that Section 106 allocations for play provision 
should be informed by the Council’s forthcoming Play Strategy, subject to 
Cabinet approval; and associated Township Action Plans, subject to Township 
approvals.

Members should also note that Section 106 allows for the provision of 20 
years maintenance of both local open space and formal sport; and the future 
maintenance of any new or improved provision must be considered when 
Section 106 contributions are allocated.

Planning officers are currently progressing an SPD which if adopted by 
Cabinet will allow future allocations of Section 106 to be used for indoor 
sports, these being prioritised through the Council’s Built Facilities Strategy. 

Page 29



4.11

4.12

Appendix 2 provides an update on allocated projects, currently in progress, on 
an individual Township basis and sets out the priorities that are being 
followed; aligned to existing and emerging policy.

Alternatives Considered

The Council is required to spend Section 106 Formal Sport and Local Open 
Space contributions in accordance with legal agreements and local and 
national planning policy. Not following the recommendations of the audit 
report, risks a loss of efficiency in delivery of Section 106 projects and the 
associated benefits to residents and potentially contributions being returned to 
developers unspent.

Costs and Budget Summary

5.1 A breakdown of all unallocated Formal Sport and Local Open Space by Ward 
and Township is attached to this report. The council currently holds £505,742 
in unallocated Formal Sport contributions and £806,342 of Local Open Space 
contributions.

Risk and Policy Implications

Contributions from Section 106 agreements, must be spent within the 
parameters of each of those legally binding documents. Where the money 
is not spent within the appropriate parameters, then this risks legal 
challenge, which would present significant financial and reputational as 
well as legal risk to the Council.

6.1

6.2 Where there are any queries or where there is any uncertainty on spending 
contributions obtained through Section 106 planning obligations, this 
should be raised and advice should be sought from Legal Services and 
where appropriate the Section 151 Officer, as any misspending may 
obviously impact on that function.

Consultation

7.1

7.2

This report is to inform Elected Members of the progress in meeting the 
recommendations of the audit report and current unallocated Section 106 
Formal Sport and Local Open Space contributions held by the Council.

Further reports will be presented to appropriate committees to seek authority 
to allocate Section 106 Formal Sport and Local Open Space contributions, 
following consultation with Ward Councillors and Portfolio Holders.

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8. Provision of Recreational Open 
Space in New Housing 
Supplementary Planning 
Document

Planning and Development, Floor 3, 
Number One Riverside or online at:
http://rochdale.gov.uk/pdf/2017-02-21-
recreation-open-space-spd-updated-
v2.pdf

Page 30

http://rochdale.gov.uk/pdf/2017-02-21-recreation-open-space-spd-updated-v2.pdf
http://rochdale.gov.uk/pdf/2017-02-21-recreation-open-space-spd-updated-v2.pdf
http://rochdale.gov.uk/pdf/2017-02-21-recreation-open-space-spd-updated-v2.pdf


For Further Information Contact: Nick Barton

Tel: 01706924847, 
nick.barton@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 31



TOWNSHIP TOTAL (£) WARD AMOUNT DEVELOPMENT RESTRICTIONS

HEYWOOD £ 199,259.63

NORTH HEYWOOD £ 22,160.58 Taylor Wimpey, Green Lane Formal Sport within the Heywood area of the Borough of Rochdale.

WEST HEYWOOD (1) £ 177,099.05 Persimmon Homes, Sutherland Road
Towards the provision/improvement of sports facilities within the vicinity of the development
including the design and supervision.

MIDDLETON £ 171,631.84

HOPWOOD HALL £ 30,055.22 Taylor Wimpey, Land at Hollin Lane Towards the provision/improvement of sports facilities at Bowlee Park.

EAST MIDDLETON £ -

NORTH MIDDLETON £ -

SOUTH MIDDLETON £ -

WEST MIDDLETON (2)

£ 129,835.17 Keepmoat, Willow Park
Towards the provision/improvement of sports facilities within the vicinity of the development
including the design and supervision.

£ 5,806.95 Keepmoat, Furrow Park
Towards the provision/improvement of sports facilities within the vicinity of the development
including the design and supervision.

£ 5,934.50 Land off Latrigg Crescent
Towards the provision/improvement of sports facilities within the vicinity of the development
including the design and supervision.

PENNINES £ 2,070.63

LITTLEBOROUGH LAKESIDE £ -

MILNROW AND NEWHEY £ -

SMALLBRIDGE AND FIRFROVE £ -

WARDLE AND WEST LITTLEBOROUGH £ 2,070.63 Birch Hill Hospital Site Enhancement of off-site sports provision.

ROCHDALE NORTH £ -

CENTRAL ROCHDALE £ -

HEALEY £ -

NORDEN £ -

SPOTLAND AND FALINGE £ -

ROCHDALE SOUTH £ 132,780.06

BALDERSTONE AND KIRKHOLT £ -

BAMFORD £ -

CASTLETON £ 69,611.14 Barratt, Manchester Road
Towards the provision/improvement of sports facilities within the vicinity of the development
including the design and supervision.

KINGSWAY
£ 54,473.68 David Wilson Homes, Kingsway Formal Sport in the vicinity of Kingsway Business Park.

£ 8,695.24 Moss Terrace / Bilberry Street

MILKSTONE AND DEEPLISH £ -

£ 505,742.16

(1) Project in development with Environmental Management and Football Association to provide improved facilities at Roach Dynamos JFC, Sutherland Road.

(2) Previously approved project at Cleweth Road cannot proceed, the allocation of £116,000 (not included in the above figires) needs to be reallocated in West Middleton ward.

P
age 32



TOWNSHIP TOTAL (£) WARD AMOUNT DEVELOPMENT RESTRICTIONS

HEYWOOD £ 174,224.87

NORTH HEYWOOD (1)

£ 54,970.00 Land at Manchester Street (Burns Mill)
Towards the provision/improvement of recreational open space within the vicinity of the
development including design and supervision.

£ 830.00 Market Street
Towards the provision/improvement of recreational open space within the vicinity of the
development including design and supervision.

£ 4,980.00 85 and 85a Rochdale Road East
Towards the provision/improvement of recreational open space within the vicinity of the
development including design and supervision.

£ 830.00 Gregg Street
Towards the provision/improvement of recreational open space within the vicinity of the
development including design and supervision.

WEST HEYWOOD

£ 108,713.87 Persimmon Homes Sutherland Road
Towards the provision/improvement of recreational open space within the vicinity of the
development including design and supervision.

£ 1,660.00 84-86 Bury Street, Heywood
Towards the provision/improvement of recreational open space within the vicinity of the
development including design and supervision.

£ 415.00 Land at Heys Lane
Towards the provision/improvement of recreational open space within the vicinity of the
development including design and supervision.

£ 1,826.00 Heywood Farm, Birtle
Towards the provision/improvement of recreational open space within the vicinity of the
development including design and supervision.

MIDDLETON £ 172,530.91

HOPWOOD HALL

£ 41,500.00 Alderman Kay, Tintern Road

£ 6,640.00 Manchester Road
Towards the provision/improvement of recreational open space within the vicinity of the
development including design and supervision.

EAST MIDDLETON

£ 20,916.00 Old David's Inn, Mount Road
Towards the provision/improvement of recreational open space within the vicinity of the
development including design and supervision.

£ 2,071.68 204 Grimshaw Lane
Towards the provision/improvement of recreational open space within the vicinity of the
development including design and supervision.

£ 5,822.00 Alkrington Moss Primary School
Towards the provision/improvement of recreational open space within the vicinity of the
development including design and supervision.

NORTH MIDDLETON  

SOUTH MIDDLETON £ 93,500.00 Sovereign Gate, Heywood Old Road
Towards the provision and/or improvement of open space sport/recreational facilities in
Middleton.

WEST MIDDLETON £ 2,081.23 Helvellyn Drive
Towards the provision/improvement of recreational open space within the vicinity of the
development including design and supervision.

PENNINES £ 220,003.93

LITTLEBOROUGH LAKESIDE

£ 22,857.14 Wiggett Homes, Hare Hill Road Children' Play Area in the visinity of the development.

£ 85,714.29 LIDL Stockton Street
Provision of a pedestrian crossing with the remainder being used to improve connectivity within
Littleborough Centre.

£ 105,000.00 BDW Trading Ltd, Stansfield Mill
Towards improvement to the Stansfield Estate Play Area, towards improvements to the public
footpath leading to Shop Wood (allocated and complete) and the provision of outdoor sports in
Littleborough.

£ 913.00 Branch Road Farm
Towards the provision/improvement of recreational open space within the vicinity of the
development including design and supervision.

£ 1,369.50 Schofield Hall Barn, Rakewood Road
Towards the provision/improvement of recreational open space within the vicinity of the
development including design and supervision.

£ 3,735.00 Riverside Centre, Madens Square
Towards the provision/improvement of recreational open space within the vicinity of the
development including design and supervision.

£ 415.00 104 Todmorden Road
Towards the provision/improvement of recreational open space within the vicinity of the
development including design and supervision.

MILNROW AND NEWHEY £ -

SMALLBRIDGE AND FIRFROVE £ -

WARDLE AND WEST LITTLEBOROUGH £ -

ROCHDALE NORTH £ 148,064.64

CENTRAL ROCHDALE £ 148,064.64 Keepmoat, Dean Street
Towards the provision/improvement of recreational open space within the vicinity of the
development including design and supervision.

HEALEY £ -

NORDEN £ -

SPOTLAND AND FALINGE £ -

ROCHDALE SOUTH £ 91,517.71

BALDERSTONE AND KIRKHOLT £ -

BAMFORD £ 26,271.90 McCarthy & Stone, Norden Road To be applied by the Council towards the provision of recreational open space.

CASTLETON £ 415.00 Partington Street
Towards the provision/improvement of recreational open space within the vicinity of the
development including design and supervision.

KINGSWAY

£ 7,904.76 Moss Terrace / Billberry Street
Towards the provision/improvement of recreational open space within the vicinity of the
development including design and supervision.

£ 54,925.07 David Wilson Homes, Kingsway
Enhancement or improvement of public realm, open space, footpaths and/or cycleways within
the vicinity of Kingsway Business Park.

MILKSTONE AND DEEPLISH (2) £ 2,000.98 Boundary Street
Towards the provision/improvement of recreational open space within the vicinity of the
development including design and supervision.

£ 806,342.06

(1) Heywood elected members have identified supporting cycle track surfacing at Springfield Park as a priority at an estimated cost of £12,000.

(2) Ward members have identified supporting improvements to Stoneyfield Park as a priority.

P
age 33



Pennines Township EM Service s106 Township Update 

 

Allocated and part spent s106 funding 

EM Services are part way through a number of s106 funded projects in Pennines Township.   

 

Table 1: Position statement existing allocated s106 plan for spend 

Scheme £ allocated £remaining Plan for spend 

Stansfield Estate Play 
area 

20,000 20,000 Allocated to RBH play site but RBH are looking 
to close the play area.  Not sufficient to pay for 
new RBC play area inspection / maintenance 
costs so not possible to spend. Ideal would be 
new development to add to this to enable a 
new RBC play areas 

Milnrow Memorial Park 5,810 5,122 Budget has been spent on Milnrow Play, EM in 
process of drawing the money down 

Wardle sports pitches 44,332 1,311 Remainder to be drawn down asap part of 
ongoing project 

 

Unallocated s106 

The s106 Steering Group will use the following EM Service strategic documents to inform s106 

priorities: 

1. Playing Pitch and Outdoor Sports Strategy (PPOS): Currently being reviewed and updated.  

The refreshed version will include consideration around bowling greens and tennis courts in 

parks as well as the formal sports pitches for football, cricket, rugby that were already 

included in the original strategy.   

1.1 In relation to the PPOS, the following have been highlighted as a priority for investment / 

improvement in the Pennines Township: 

a. Littleborough Sports Centre multi-sports hub for Pennines Township as number 

one priority  

b. Multi-team sites at Rakewood and Hollingworth academy as the second priority  

c. Individual team sites as third priority  

d. Following the above, any bowls / tennis project yet to be identified as part of the 

strategy refresh 

 

2. Play Area Strategy (PAS): This new strategy is currently being designed and is expected to 

be presented to Members early in the New Year.  This will inform on the current provision 

quantity / quality / location for each site whether Council or RBH play area and identify 

exactly what investment is required over a 5 year period to ensure play area provision across 

the Borough meets requirements, expected standards and is innovative and attractive to 

users.   

2.1 In relation to the PAS, the following areas have been highlighted as a priority for investment / 

improvement in the Pennines Township: 

a. Main Town Park (Hare Hill Park) relatively major refurbishment required 

b. Ensuring play areas are accessible and inclusive for all people regardless of 

disabilities of children or accompanying adults 

c. Programme of remedial works various sites already identified as required to ensure 

safety standard, Stonie Heys identified as a specific priority 

d. If RBH to decide to close a play area on their land and if this leaves under-

provision of play facilities in an area, assess and provide Members with information 

and recommendations they will need to make any decisions on funding a RBC 

transfer of the site or for providing alternative play area provision as appropriate 
Page 34



 

3. Individual site Green Flag management plans developed in partnership with various 

stakeholders that set out individual projects deemed desirable for that site based on input 

from users, EM Service staff, Members, Friends group, Green Flag judges comments etc. 

 

Unallocated s106 

The Main s106 report includes as an appendix a list of all unallocated s106 for Pennines Township. 

Individual scheme proposals using the above documents will be brought to Cabinet (Formal Sports) 

and Township (play / open space improvements) for Member consideration and s106 funding 

allocation in due course.   

 

New s106 will include as per the Supplementary Planning Document (SPD), a 20 year inspection 

and maintenance budget allocation to be negotiated by Planning as part of the legal Planning 

processes around s106.   

 

For existing unallocated s106 as part of the table above, it should be understood that for any spend 

which delivers over and above the current level of provision, the £value in column 3 will have to be 

allocated to both capital expenditure to deliver the new provision and to revenue expenditure to 

inspect and maintain that new provision.  If the funding was allocated purely to capital costs it would 

create a provision that there is no budget to inspect or maintain and therefore a liability. 

 

Standard industry practice is to allocate the same £value capital costs to revenue costs, so a play 

area that costs £50,000 to supply and install will require £50,000 revenue budget to inspect and 

maintain for 20 years.  For example we have a 6 weekly detailed technical inspection of all the 

equipment fixtures and fittings and safety surfacing by trained Council staff and an annual 

independent inspection by an external company.   

 

The requirement for additional revenue budget provision to inspect and maintain facilities that 

deliver over and above existing provision is expected to be confirmed in the PAS and is part of the 

refresh of Planning Policy. 

 

If a specific project is expected to deviate from the standard revenue costing practice because it is 

simpler and therefore less costly to inspect and maintain this will be defined to Members and a 

lower revenue contribution would be sought. 

 

If there are specific circumstances whereby a scheme is not creating additional provision over and 

above existing facilities then EM Service would not request revenue costs, for example if Township 

agreed to decommission a remnant play area in an area of over-provision in one part of the 

Township then this could balance new provision elsewhere in the Township. 

  

Page 35



Rochdale South Township EM Service s106 Township Update 

 

Allocated and part spent s106 funding 

EM Services are part way through a number of s106 funded projects in Rochdale South Township.   

 

Table 1: Position statement existing allocated s106 plan for spend 

Scheme £ allocated £remaining Plan for spend 

Robinsons Common 244,000 64,805 Ongoing project MUGA etc money to continue 
to be drawn down.  If any spare possible for 
Play Area project see below. 

Sparth community centre 
canopy 

8,500 8,500 No deliverable, to be returned to Members to 
make decision alternative spend. 

Broad Lane Right of Way 
(Wainhomes) 

27,133 27,133 Quotes being obtained, project will be 
delivered. 

Rochdale Memorial 
Gardens revamp 

28,478 1,072 Remainder will be spent this financial year, a 
few small jobs to finish off. 

Balderstone Sports 
project 

748,063 731,086 Ongoing project. 

 

Unallocated s106 

The s106 Steering Group will use the following EM Service strategic documents to inform s106 

priorities: 

1. Playing Pitch and Outdoor Sports Strategy (PPOS): Currently being reviewed and updated.  

The refreshed version will include consideration around bowling greens and tennis courts in 

parks as well as the formal sports pitches for football, cricket, rugby that were already 

included in the original strategy.   

1.1 In relation to the PPOS, the following have been highlighted as a priority for investment / 

improvement in the Rochdale South Township: 

e. Firgrove Sports Centre multi-sports hub for Rochdale South Township as number 

one priority  

f. Multi-team sites at Mayfield Rugby, Rochdale Rugby, Kingsway School and Top 

O’th Lane as the second priority  

g. Individual team sites as third priority  

h. Following the above, any bowls / tennis project yet to be identified as part of the 

strategy refresh 

 

2. Play Area Strategy (PAS): This new strategy is currently being designed and is expected to 

be presented to Members early in the New Year.  This will inform on the current provision 

quantity / quality / location for each site whether Council or RBH play area and identify 

exactly what investment is required over a 5 year period to ensure play area provision across 

the Borough meets requirements, expected standards and is innovative and attractive to 

users.   

2.1 In relation to the PAS, the following areas have been highlighted as a priority for investment / 

improvement in the Rochdale South Township: 

e. Main Town Park (Springfield Park) relatively major refurbishment required 

f. Ensuring play areas are accessible and inclusive for all people regardless of 

disabilities of children or accompanying adults 

g. Programme of remedial works various sites already identified as required to ensure 

safety standard, Balderstone Park identified as a specific priority 

h. If RBH to decide to close a play area on their land and if this leaves under-

provision of play facilities in an area, assess and provide Members with information 
Page 36



and recommendations they will need to make any decisions on funding a RBC 

transfer of the site or for providing alternative play area provision as appropriate 

 

3. Individual site Green Flag management plans developed in partnership with various 

stakeholders that set out individual projects deemed desirable for that site based on input 

from users, EM Service staff, Members, Friends group, Green Flag judges comments etc. 

 

Unallocated s106 

The main s106 report includes as an appendix a list of all unallocated s106 for Rochdale South 

Township. Individual scheme proposals using the above documents will be brought to Cabinet 

(Formal Sports) and Township (play / open space improvements) for Member consideration and 

s106 funding allocation in due course.   

 

New s106 will include as per the Supplementary Planning Document (SPD), a 20 year inspection 

and maintenance budget allocation to be negotiated by Planning as part of the legal Planning 

processes around s106.   

 

For existing unallocated s106 as part of the table above, it should be understood that for any spend 

which delivers over and above the current level of provision, the £value in column 3 will have to be 

allocated to both capital expenditure to deliver the new provision and to revenue expenditure to 

inspect and maintain that new provision.  If the funding was allocated purely to capital costs it would 

create a provision that there is no budget to inspect or maintain and therefore a liability. 

 

Standard industry practice is to allocate the same £value capital costs to revenue costs, so a play 

area that costs £50,000 to supply and install will require £50,000 revenue budget to inspect and 

maintain for 20 years.  For example we have a 6 weekly detailed technical inspection of all the 

equipment fixtures and fittings and safety surfacing by trained Council staff and an annual 

independent inspection by an external company.   

 

The requirement for additional revenue budget provision to inspect and maintain facilities that 

deliver over and above existing provision is expected to be confirmed in the PAS and is part of the 

refresh of Planning Policy. 

 

If a specific project is expected to deviate from the standard revenue costing practice because it is 

simpler and therefore less costly to inspect and maintain this will be defined to Members and a 

lower revenue contribution would be sought. 

 

If there are specific circumstances whereby a scheme is not creating additional provision over and 

above existing facilities then EM Service would not request revenue costs, for example if Township 

agreed to decommission a remnant play area in an area of over-provision in one part of the 

Township then this could balance new provision elsewhere in the Township. 

  

Page 37



Rochdale North Township EM Service s106 Township Update 

 

Allocated and part spent s106 funding 

EM Services are part way through a number of s106 funded projects in Rochdale North Township.   

 

Table 1: Position statement existing allocated s106 plan for spend 

Scheme £ allocated £remaining Plan for spend 

Syke Pond 36,536 36,536 Structural survey done and Paul Harris / QS 
team putting out to tender, to be spent this 
financial year 

 

Unallocated s106 

The s106 Steering Group will use the following EM Service strategic documents to inform s106 

priorities: 

1. Playing Pitch and Outdoor Sports Strategy (PPOS): Currently being reviewed and updated.  

The refreshed version will include consideration around bowling greens and tennis courts in 

parks as well as the formal sports pitches for football, cricket, rugby that were already 

included in the original strategy.   

1.1 In relation to the PPOS, the following have been highlighted as a priority for investment / 

improvement in the Rochdale North Township: 

i. Firgrove Sports Centre multi-sports hub for Rochdale North Township as number 

one priority  

j. Multi-team sites at Oulder Hill, Norden Community School and Rochdale Cricket 

and lacrosse club as the second priority  

k. Individual team sites as third priority  

l. Following the above, any bowls / tennis project yet to be identified as part of the 

strategy refresh 

 

2. Play Area Strategy (PAS): This new strategy is currently being designed and is expected to 

be presented to Members early in the New Year.  This will inform on the current provision 

quantity / quality / location for each site whether Council or RBH play area and identify 

exactly what investment is required over a 5 year period to ensure play area provision across 

the Borough meets requirements, expected standards and is innovative and attractive to 

users.   

2.1 In relation to the PAS, the following areas have been highlighted as a priority for investment / 

improvement in the Rochdale North Township: 

a. Moderate Investment at multiple partially under-provisioned sites: 

- Falinge 

- Norden 

- Heybrook 

- Denehurst 

Unlike some other Townships there is no one major investment required site but 

rather a number of smaller / medium size projects  

i. Ensuring play areas are accessible and inclusive for all people regardless of 

disabilities of children or accompanying adults 

j. Programme of remedial works various sites already identified as required to ensure 

safety standard 

k. If RBH to decide to close a play area on their land and if this leaves under-

provision of play facilities in an area, assess and provide Members with information Page 38



and recommendations they will need to make any decisions on funding a RBC 

transfer of the site or for providing alternative play area provision as appropriate 

 

3. Individual site Green Flag management plans developed in partnership with various 

stakeholders that set out individual projects deemed desirable for that site based on input 

from users, EM Service staff, Members, Friends group, Green Flag judges comments etc. 

 

Unallocated s106 

The main s106 report includes as an appendix a list of all unallocated s106 for Rochdale North 

Township. Individual scheme proposals using the above documents will be brought to Cabinet 

(Formal Sports) and Township (play / open space improvements) for Member consideration and 

s106 funding allocation in due course.   

 

New s106 will include as per the Supplementary Planning Document (SPD), a 20 year inspection 

and maintenance budget allocation to be negotiated by Planning as part of the legal Planning 

processes around s106.   

 

For existing unallocated s106 as part of the table above, it should be understood that for any spend 

which delivers over and above the current level of provision, the £value in column 3 will have to be 

allocated to both capital expenditure to deliver the new provision and to revenue expenditure to 

inspect and maintain that new provision.  If the funding was allocated purely to capital costs it would 

create a provision that there is no budget to inspect or maintain and therefore a liability. 

 

Standard industry practice is to allocate the same £value capital costs to revenue costs, so a play 

area that costs £50,000 to supply and install will require £50,000 revenue budget to inspect and 

maintain for 20 years.  For example we have a 6 weekly detailed technical inspection of all the 

equipment fixtures and fittings and safety surfacing by trained Council staff and an annual 

independent inspection by an external company.   

 

The requirement for additional revenue budget provision to inspect and maintain facilities that 

deliver over and above existing provision is expected to be confirmed in the PAS and is part of the 

refresh of Planning Policy. 

 

If a specific project is expected to deviate from the standard revenue costing practice because it is 

simpler and therefore less costly to inspect and maintain this will be defined to Members and a 

lower revenue contribution would be sought. 

 

If there are specific circumstances whereby a scheme is not creating additional provision over and 

above existing facilities then EM Service would not request revenue costs, for example if Township 

agreed to decommission a remnant play area in an area of over-provision in one part of the 

Township then this could balance new provision elsewhere in the Township. 

  

Page 39



Middleton Township EM Service s106 Township Update 

 

Allocated and part spent s106 funding 

EM Services are part way through a number of s106 funded projects in Middleton Township.   

 

Table 1: Position statement existing allocated s106 plan for spend: 

Scheme £ allocated £remaining Plan for spend 

Middleton Town Centre 
Conservation project 

30,000 £8,507 Project implementation sits outside EM with 
Council Conservation Officer Jessica Scott.  
We are expecting spend this financial year 

Pine St play area 26,226 10,398 Works identified and programmed in at King 
George V to upgrade play area to spend 
monies this financial year 

Cleweth Rd Changing 
rooms 

116,000 116,000 Project undeliverable, to be taken back to 
Members to consider alternative allocation 

Bowlee 186,463 118,819 Some spend still due on drainage but 
suggested to Members to retain remainder to 
add to expected additional s106 to enable 
large item spend e.g. 4G pitch 

 

Unallocated s106 

The s106 Steering Group will use the following EM Service strategic documents to inform s106 

priorities: 

1. Playing Pitch and Outdoor Sports Strategy (PPOS): Currently being reviewed and updated.  

The refreshed version will include consideration around bowling greens and tennis courts in 

parks as well as the formal sports pitches for football, cricket, rugby that were already 

included in the original strategy.   

1.1 In relation to the PPOS, the following have been highlighted as a priority for investment / 

improvement in the Middleton Township: 

m. Bowlee multi-sports hub for Middleton Township as number one priority  

n. Multi-team sites at Limefield Park, Hopwood Hall and Middleton Cricket Club as the 

second priority  

o. Individual team sites as third priority  

p. Following the above, any bowls / tennis project yet to be identified as part of the 

strategy refresh 

 

2. Play Area Strategy (PAS): This new strategy is currently being designed and is expected to 

be presented to Members early in the New Year.  This will inform on the current provision 

quantity / quality / location for each site whether Council or RBH play area and identify 

exactly what investment is required over a 5 year period to ensure play area provision across 

the Borough meets requirements, expected standards and is innovative and attractive to 

users.   

2.1 In relation to the PAS, the following areas have been highlighted as a priority for investment / 

improvement in the Middleton Township: 

a. Moderate investment at multiple partially under-provisioned sites including: 

- King George 

- Hollins 

- Brassey St 

- Bowlee 

Unlike some other Townships there is no one major investment required site but rather 

lots of smaller / medium size projects  Page 40



l. Ensuring play areas are accessible and inclusive for all people regardless of 

disabilities of children or accompanying adults 

m. Programme of remedial works various sites already identified as required to ensure 

safety standard 

n. If RBH to decide to close a play area on their land and if this leaves under-

provision of play facilities in an area, assess and provide Members with information 

and recommendations they will need to make any decisions on funding a RBC 

transfer of the site or for providing alternative play area provision as appropriate 

 

3. Individual site Green Flag management plans developed in partnership with various 

stakeholders that set out individual projects deemed desirable for that site based on input 

from users, EM Service staff, Members, Friends group, Green Flag judges comments etc. 

 

Unallocated s106 

The Main s106 report includes as an appendix a list of all unallocated s106 for Middleton Township. 

Individual scheme proposals using the above documents will be brought to Cabinet (Formal Sports) 

and Township (play / open space improvements) for Member consideration and s106 funding 

allocation in due course.   

 

New s106 will include as per the Supplementary Planning Document (SPD), a 20 year inspection 

and maintenance budget allocation to be negotiated by Planning as part of the legal Planning 

processes around s106.   

 

For existing unallocated s106 as part of the table above, it should be understood that for any spend 

which delivers over and above the current level of provision, the £value in column 3 will have to be 

allocated to both capital expenditure to deliver the new provision and to revenue expenditure to 

inspect and maintain that new provision.  If the funding was allocated purely to capital costs it would 

create a provision that there is no budget to inspect or maintain and therefore a liability. 

 

Standard industry practice is to allocate the same £value capital costs to revenue costs, so a play 

area that costs £50,000 to supply and install will require £50,000 revenue budget to inspect and 

maintain for 20 years.  For example we have a 6 weekly detailed technical inspection of all the 

equipment fixtures and fittings and safety surfacing by trained Council staff and an annual 

independent inspection by an external company.   

 

The requirement for additional revenue budget provision to inspect and maintain facilities that 

deliver over and above existing provision is expected to be confirmed in the PAS and is part of the 

refresh of Planning Policy. 

 

If a specific project is expected to deviate from the standard revenue costing practice because it is 

simpler and therefore less costly to inspect and maintain this will be defined to Members and a 

lower revenue contribution would be sought. 

 

If there are specific circumstances whereby a scheme is not creating additional provision over and 

above existing facilities then EM Service would not request revenue costs, for example if Township 

agreed to decommission a remnant play area in an area of over-provision in one part of the 

Township then this could balance new provision elsewhere in the Township. 

 

 
Page 41



Heywood Township EM Service s106 Township Update 

 

Allocated and part spent s106 funding 

EM Services are part way through a number of s106 funded projects in Heywood Township.   

 

Table 1: Position statement existing allocated s106 plan for spend: 

Scheme £ value 
allocated 

£ value 
remaining 

Plan for spend 

Hopwood Park 
drainage,  ponds & 
paths 

11,155 6,368 Initial project complete.  
Members are requested to approve alternate 
spend on improving drainage & matting under 
the Hopwood Park zipwire which is frequently 
too muddy to use 

Queen’s Park Multi-
use Games Area 

89,000 610 Retention for unexpected early repairs. 
Assess March 2020 to see if any remedial 
works after winter weathering 

 

Unallocated s106 

The s106 Steering Group will use the following EM Service strategic documents to inform s106 

priorities: 

1. Playing Pitch and Outdoor Sports Strategy (PPOS): Currently being reviewed and updated.  

The refreshed version will include consideration around bowling greens and tennis courts in 

parks as well as the formal sports pitches for football, cricket, rugby that were already 

included in the original strategy.   

1.1 In relation to the PPOS, the following have been highlighted as a priority for investment / 

improvement in the Heywood Township: 

a. Heywood Sports Village (L4L) main sports hub for the Township as number one 

priority  

b. Multi-team site at Sutherland Road as the second priority 

c. Individual team sites as third priority 3 

d. Following the above, any bowls / tennis project yet to be identified as part of the 

strategy refresh 

 

2. Play Area Strategy (PAS): This new strategy is currently being designed and is expected to 

be presented to Members early in the New Year.  This will inform on the current provision 

quantity / quality / location for each site whether Council or RBH play area and identify 

exactly what investment is required over a 5 year period to ensure play area provision across 

the Borough meets requirements, expected standards and is innovative and attractive to 

users.   

2.1 In relation to the PAS, the following areas have been highlighted as a priority for investment / 

improvement in the Heywood Township: 

a. Main Town Park (Queen’s) major refurbishment required 

b. Investment at under-provisioned Darnhill site 

c. Ensuring play areas are accessible and inclusive for all people regardless of 

disabilities of children or accompanying adults 

d. Programme of remedial works various sites already identified as required to 

ensure safety standard 

e. If RBH to decide to close a play area on their land and if this leaves under-

provision of play facilities in an area, assess and provide Members with information 
Page 42



and recommendations they will need to make any decisions on funding a RBC 

transfer of the site or for providing alternative play area provision as appropriate 

f. Upgrading poor quality youth provision (skate facility at Hopwood Park is very poor 

compared to provision in other Townships) 

 

3. Individual site Green Flag management plans developed in partnership with various 

stakeholders that set out individual projects deemed desirable for that site based on input 

from users, EM Service staff, Members, Friends group, Green Flag judges’ comments etc. 

 

Unallocated s106 

The main s106 report includes as an appendix a list of all unallocated s106 for Heywood Township. 

Individual scheme proposals using the above documents will be brought to Cabinet (Formal Sports) 

and Township (play / open space improvements) for Member consideration and s106 funding 

allocation in due course.   

 

New s106 will include as per the Supplementary Planning Document (SPD), a 20 year inspection 

and maintenance budget allocation to be negotiated by Planning as part of the legal Planning 

processes around s106.   

 

For existing unallocated s106 as part of the table above, it should be understood that for any spend 

which delivers over and above the current level of provision, the £value in column 3 will have to be 

allocated to both capital expenditure to deliver the new provision and to revenue expenditure to 

inspect and maintain that new provision.  If the funding was allocated purely to capital costs it would 

create a provision that there is no budget to inspect or maintain and therefore a liability. 

 

Standard industry practice is to allocate the same £value capital costs to revenue costs, so a play 

area that costs £50,000 to supply and install will require £50,000 revenue budget to inspect and 

maintain for 20 years.  For example we have a 6 weekly detailed technical inspection of all the 

equipment fixtures and fittings and safety surfacing by trained Council staff and an annual 

independent inspection by an external company.   

 

The requirement for additional revenue budget provision to inspect and maintain facilities that 

deliver over and above existing provision is expected to be confirmed in the PAS and is part of the 

refresh of Planning Policy. 

 

If a specific project is expected to deviate from the standard revenue costing practice because it is 

simpler and therefore less costly to inspect and maintain this will be defined to Members and a 

lower revenue contribution would be sought. 

 

If there are specific circumstances whereby a scheme is not creating additional provision over and 

above existing facilities then EM Service would not request revenue costs, for example if Township 

agreed to decommission a remnant play area in an area of over-provision in one part of the 

Township then this could balance new provision elsewhere in the Township. 

Page 43


	Agenda
	7 Minutes
	Minutes

	9 Objections to Traffic Order - Rochdale Road East, Heywood
	10 Section 106 - Queen's Park BMX Track
	11 Section 106 Formal Sport and Local Open Space
	Append. 2 for Section 106 Formal Sport and Local Open Space
	Append. 3 for Section 106 Formal Sport and Local Open Space


